
  CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

AGENDA Tuesday, February 2, 2021  7:00PM 
 By ZOOM 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 1-12-2021

C2) Micro Life Institute Inc/The Cottages on Vaughan Residential Development

D. REPORTS:
1) Planning & Zoning Report

2) City Manager’s Report

3) City Attorney’s Report

4) Council Remarks

5) Mayor’s Report

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will be 
allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be limited to 
40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please submit those to 
the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an 
opportunity for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner.

F. OLD BUSINESS
G1) Appoint/ fill one (1) vacant position on the Planning and Zoning Board.

G. NEW BUSINESS

E1)  Standing Advisory Committees - Appointing/Selecting Chairs and Vice-Chairs

E2) Conditional use permit request for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road Suites B & C.

E3) Consider a request for a shared or reduced parking agreement from Mr. Henock Mekonnen for a proposed retail 

development at 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue with the current parking (property) for a gas station located at 3874 

E. Ponce de Leon Avenue.

E4) Review/Discuss Approval of Request from CORE (Community Organized Relief Effort) for COVID-19 Testing 

and/or Vaccine Funding.

E5) Encourage plants options on food menu and all City events

E6) Proclamation for Black History Month

E7) A Resolution to refer to the housing committee to make policy recommendations for affordable housing 

solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund.

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION to Discuss a legal matter

I. ADJOURNMENT:

Jamie Carroll     Ahmed Hassan 
Awet Eyasu  Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 

Robin I. Gomez– City Manager 

Beverly Burks –Mayor 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

MINUTES 
CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, January 12, 2021 
Via Zoom 
Officials Present by Teleconference 
Mayor:  Beverly H. Burks 
Council: Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 
City Manager: Robin I. Gomez  
City Clerk: Tracy Ashby  
City Attorney: Stephen Quinn 

 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

 
B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Debra Johnson, Ahmed Hassan, Laura Hopkins 
 

C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 12/8/2020  
Jamie Carroll Made a motion to Approved   Laura Hopkins seconded the motion. A vote was called and the 
motion carried. (5,0).  
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to amend the agenda to remove from consent agenda the appointment of the 
members to the Planning & Zoning to discuss and approve them individually. Debra Johnson seconded the 
motion.  A Vote was called and the motion carried (5,0).  Item moved to the last agenda item (H12).  
 
C2) PRESENTATION:  Starnes Senior Living Housing Development – Housing Development Corporation 
Dorothy Bell and Kerry Taylor provided an update on the Starnes Senior project.  The project is currently 88% 
completed designed for seniors age 62+.  She provided details on unit types available, amenities and rental 
rates. The tenant selection will give preference to DeKalb County applicants.    
 
 

D. REPORTS:   
1) Planning & Zoning Report 
Shawanna Qawiy reported the Comprehensive Plan is underway with the first public meeting during tonight’s 
meeting. The Zoning rewrite team has sent the recommendation to the Council and will proceed with the 
Councils approval.  She advised a Proposed conditional use permit application has been submitted for 1051 
Montreal Road for a laundry mat.  
 
2) City Manager’s Report 
Mr. Gomez provided a detailed report on City and staff activities as COVID continues to impact operations. The 
City offices will remain closed to the public through the end of the month and he advised where individuals can 
access the city website for staff contact information. He provided a status report on how the new recycling is 
proceeding and the progress of the Streetscape project. He advised upcoming locations for COVID testing and 
planned student tutoring assistance program.  The Financial Report for December 31, 2020 was provided with 
detailed information on expenditures and revenues and COVID expenditures reimbursed by the CARES 
funding.  

 
3) City Attorney’s Report  

 No report 
 
 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

4)  Council Remarks 
Laura Hopkins expressed solidarity with the Police after the scenes witnessed at the Capitol on January 6th.   
She discussed that a posting by a Clarkston resident who had been a refugee and their horror in having come 
from a war-torn country where their country and government were destroyed, and to witness that same sight 
here.  She stated she understood the concerns of the residents and she extended her respect to the Police and the 
job they are doing to guard our safety.   
 
Vice Mayor Eyasu wished Happy New Year and Ethiopian Christmas. He was proud of the strong turn out for 
the run off election and congratulated the community members.  
 
5) Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Burks discussed the Clarkston COVID Task force is doing a Day of Service on MLK Day with the hope 
to distribute 10,000 masks to the apartments.  The City has seen an uptick in COVID numbers so we will do 
our part to reduce transmissions.  Working with Soccer in the Streets to do a program about MLK to educate  
our youth, so they will have an appreciation of peaceful protest.  Mayor Burks is a member of AKA Sorority 
and Alpha Kappa Alpha has scheduled to have a 3D mammogram unit and COVID testing on Founders Day 
(January 16)  at the Tahoe Village.  The Mayor reported she has been participating on weekly calls with GMA 
on COVID to get status of our community.  She is also working with Mayors of community had DMA meeting. 

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will 
be allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be 
limited to 40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please 
submit those to the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council 
desires to allow an opportunity for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, 
timely manner. 
 
Mayor Burks opened the meeting for Public Comments. 
 
Tracy Bishop addressed concerns with item H9 creating a subjective protected group. 
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
        

G. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Mayor read the items listed under the Consent Agenda 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to approve the listed items in the Consent Agenda.   Debra Johnson seconded the 
motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5,0).  
G2) Confirm Attorney 
G3) Confirm Auditor 
G4) Confirm Judge 
G5) Confirm Solicitor 
G6) Confirm Ethics Hearing Officer 
G7) Appoint Historic Preservation Committee member 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
H1) Vice-Mayor Selection 
Mayor Burks reported there were two nominees, Debra Johnson and Awet Eyasu, for the Vice Mayor seat. 
She requested if there are any additional nominations.  No additional candidate names were submitted. 
 
Debra Johnson thanked Laura Hopkins for nominating her and expressed it was an honor to be nominated. 
 
Awet Eyasu gave thanks for the opportunity to serve as Mayor and that it has been a challenging year and 
they all have served the community during these trying times.  Being the vice mayo has been a great pleasure 
and the honor to conduct the meetings since March to November. He would like to continue serving.  



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

 
Mayor Burks thanked them both for their willingness to serve and called for the votes.  
Debra Johnson – 2 Votes: Laura Hopkins and Debra Johnson. 
Awet Eyasu – 3 Votes: Jamie Carroll, Ahmed Hassan and Awet Eyasu  
Awet Eyasu will continue to serve as Vice Mayor for 2021. 
 
H2) Approve Package Alcohol Application – 4556 E Ponce de Leon Ave 
Mr. Gomez  stated this is a change in ownership for 4556 E Ponce de Leon.  All of the required inspections 
have been performed and the required background check has been passed. 
 
Debra Johnson made a motion to approve the Approve Beer/Wine/Malt Package Alcohol Application for 
Might Money Inc DBA 76 Food Mart located at 4556 E Ponce De Leon Ave 
Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (4-Yes: Johnson, Hopkins, 
Carroll, Eyasu, 1-Abstain; Hassan).  

 
H3) Award Trailhead & Rowland St Pedestrian Improvements bid to the lowest bidder – SOL Construction 
Mayor Burks stated that going forward a process would include notifying potentially impacted residents.  
Mr. Gomez detailed information on the Trailhead Rowland Street Pedestrian Improvements including 
information from the Project Open House held in December 2018 and from the seven bids received.   
 
Discussion on public parking and the details of the project.  Consideration was given to adding sidewalks on 
Rogers as well as Rowland to improve pedestrian safety on this project by change orders. The residents on 
Rogers would prefer to have parking included on Hill Street.   
 
Jamie Carroll made a motion to award the Trailhead & Rowland St Pedestrian Improvements to the lowest 
bid by Sol Construction in the amount of $1,081,011.10 with understanding the Project Manager will bring 
proposed change orders for adding sidewalks along Rogers Street between Market St and N Indian Creek and 
along Rowland Street between Lovejoy and N Indian Creek Dr, and a change order to potentially remove Hill 
street to allow for additional parking.  Awet Eyasu seconded the motion. Discussion that the potential change 
orders will be for the Council to consider at a later date, but not necessarily approved. Project cannot begin 
until NAMB has moved from the parking lot, estimate mid-February and the contractor will be directed to 
not start on potential change areas.. A vote was called and the motion carried (4-Yes: Jamie Carrol, Awet 
Eyasu, Debra Johnson, Ahmed Hassan, 1-Abstain: Laura Hopkins) 
 
H4) To present to the Mayor and City Council the selection committee’s recommendation to perform the 
City’s zoning ordinance rewrite services 
Shawanna Qawiy reported detailed the process and  the City received  four proposals for the Zoning 
Ordinance rewrite.  The selection committee did interview the four firms and the committee recommended 
Pond & Co.  and submitted their recommendation to the Council for consideration to approval.  The City 
would then proceed with drafting a contract upon approval of the company.  
 
Jamie Carroll made a motion to approve Pond & Co.  for the City’s Zoning rewrite.  Debra Johnson seconded 
the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).   

 
H5) Public Hearing 2021 Comprehensive Plan Update 
Shawanna Qawiy reported on the City of Clarkston Comprehensive Plan, know as Clarkston 2040, is to be 
updated before October 31, 2021. 
 
Mayor Burks opened the Public Hearing 
Dean Moore spoke in support of the public being involved in the Plan.  
No other speakers in support or opposition of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Mayor Burks closed the Public Hearing.  
 
Mrs. Qawiy provided a schedule of planned upcoming meetings.  



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

H6) Approve an additional 10% hazard/COVID-19 pay for all City employees for all hours actually worked 
at a City facility or in the field during the continued Pandemic. 
Mr. Gomez reported this had been in place since March 2020 at an initial 5% and then increased to 10%.  
City Staff that are remotely working do not receive the increase and it is only paid when staff are working on-
site or in the field for their job. Council members expressed appreciation to the city staff. 
 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to approve to continue to provide the 10% hazard/COVID-19 pay for all City 
employees for all hours actually worked at a City facility or in the field during the continued Pandemic, until 
such time as the pandemic slows and employees can safely return to city offices. Debra Johnson seconded. 
A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  

 
H7) Adopt Proclamation for MLK Day 
Mayor Burks discussed the proclamation to recognize this day as the 26th Martin Luther Day of service.  
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to approve the Proclamation designating the Martin Luther King Holiday as a 
day of service in Clarkston.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion. A vote was called and the motion carried 
(5,0).  
 
H8) Adopt Digital Inclusion Resolution 
Mayor Burks stated this resolution is to assure assurance of accessible, available, affordable, relevant, 
privacy and equitable access to the World Wide Web. 
 
Debra Johnson made a  motion to approve the Digital Inclusion Resolution. Laura Hopkins seconded the 
motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  

 
H9) Adopt Resolution by the Clarkston City Council condemning the act of falsely reporting a crime or 
otherwise causing a police officer to contact a person in order to discriminate against the person on the basis 
of the person’s race, ethnicity, religious affiliation, gender, sexual orientation, or gender identity. 
Mayor Burks stated the intent is to stop any misuse of 911. Mr. Quinn reported he added section 4 to 
encourage the officers to cognizant of the Councils intent.  Discussion, based on the earlier citizen comment, 
that this is a resolution and not an ordinance, as false reporting is already against the law, but the resolution 
intent is to bring attention to the misuse of 911 and educate the public. 
 
Laura Hopkins made a motion to approve the Resolution by the Clarkston City Council condemning the act 
of falsely reporting a crime or otherwise causing a police officer to contact a person in order to discriminate 
against the person on the basis of the person’s race, ethnicity, religious affiliation, gender, sexual orientation, 
or gender identity. Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  
 
H10) Amend City Manager Employment Agreement 
Mr. Quinn discussed the City Manager has a written contract, per the Charter, but to provide for a salary 
increase requires a contract amendment.  This amendment is for a 3% compensation increase.  
 
Jamie Carrol made a motion to approve the contract amendment for a 3% salary increase.  Laura Hopkins 
seconded.  A vote was called and the motion carried  (4 -YES: Jamie Carroll, Debra Johnson, Lauran 
Hopkins, Ahmed Hassan,  1-Abstain: Awet Eyasu ) 
 
H11) Approve a Resolution on the Administration of Business Licensing Regarding Special 
Licensing for Pawnbrokers 
Mr. Gomez detailed the Resolution is proposed to clarify for City Staff how to administer Article I and 
Article VII in concert. Any business looking to provide pawnbroker services must first apply and obtain the 
City’s business registration/occupational tax certificate pursuant to Article I, prior to applying and obtaining 
a pawnbroker license pursuant to Article 7. No pawnbroker may operate without these two requirements in 
the order listed. 
 
Additionally, the attached Resolution would also waive the annual regulatory fee for the “title pawn” 



                                            
 

Note: Detailed Information for Agenda Items can be found at the City of Clarkston Website www.clarkstonga.gov/ 

subset of pawnbrokers that require proof of title in connection with their pawn transactions since these 
businesses do not require extensive monitoring by the Police Department. 
 
Awet Eyasu made a motion approve the resolution regarding the administration of Article 1 of Chapter 11 of 
the City of Clarkston Code of Ordinances concerning business licensing, in conjunction with Article VII of 
that same chapter regarding licensing for pawnbrokers.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was 
called and the motion carried (5, 0).  
 
H11)  Moved from Consent Agenda: G1) Appoint/ fill one (1) vacant position and to reconfirm three (3) 
expiring term positions on the Planning and Zoning Board. 
Laura Hopkins stated she requested to move the item from the consent agenda so each seat could be voted on 
separately.   
Birendra Dhakal:  Awet Eyasu made a motion to re-appoint Birendra Dhakal to the Planning & Zoning 
Board.  Laura Hopkins seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  
 
Amy Medford:  Jamie Carroll made a motion to re-appoint Amy Medford.  No second received.  Council 
Discussion on Mrs. Medford service on the Planning Board. Mrs. Medford was afforded an opportunity to 
respond to Council comments. She was willing to change her interactions in meetings if the other members 
are provided training on Roberts Rules of Order. Discussion from the City Attorney that the Chair could 
entertain a repeat motion on this appointment. 
 
Mayor Burks offered to entertain a repeat motion.  Jamie Carroll made a motion to approve Amy Medford to 
serve another term after having heard her responses and she is rained in this area.  No second received. 
Motion failed.  
 
Felecia Weinert  Laura Hopkins made a motion to re-appoint Felecia Weinert  to the Planning & Zoning 
Board.  Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  
 
Awet Eyasu made a motion to appoint Susan Hood to the vacant Planning & Zoning Seat.  Ahmed Hassan 
seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5, 0).  
 
Council discussion that Vacancy would be filled at next meeting and the need for  providing training for 
Planning Member.  

 
I. ADJOURNMENT:  

Awet Eyasu made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called 
and the motion carried. (5,0).  



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

SUBJECT: To allow the Mayor and City Council members to make recommendations and approve to 
fill one (1) vacant position on the Planning and Zoning Board. 

PURPOSE:  The Mayor and City Council shall review and confirm one (1) vacant position on the 
Planning and Zoning Board. 

At the January 12, 2021 Council Meeting, the Council approved to appoint Susan Hood to fill the 
vacant unexpired term to December 31, 2022 and to re-appoint Birendra Dhakal and Felecia 
Weinert for four (4) year terms to December 31, 2024. 

 The term of Amy Medford expired on December 31, 2020 and her seat was not filled at the January 
12, 2021 Meeting.  

The Mayor and City Council shall make the recommendation to fill a vacant position on the Planning 
and Zoning Board that will expire on December 31, 2024. The Department has attached all interested 
applications to consider for this position.  

RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

ITEM NO: F1 

ACTION TYPE: 
OLD BUSINESS 
APPOINTMENT 
 

HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning & Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning/Economic and Development Director 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   





CITY OF CLARKSTON 
3LANN,N*�	�=ON,N*�COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

CELL PHONE: 

NAME: 

HOME ADDRESS: 

HOME PHONE: 

E-mail ADDRESS:

LENGTH OF RESIDENCY IN CLARKSTON:  

IF EMPLOYED, PLEASE LIST WHERE YOU WORK AND POSITION YOU HOLD: 

PLEASE ATTACH A LETTER OF INTEREST INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 
FOLLOWING: 

• Why you wish to be considered for appointment to the 3lanninJ 	 =oninJ Committee
• Your relevant experience and knowledge

The information provided will be used by the 0ayor to make a nomination and for the City 
Council to consider for aSSointment, when a vacancy exists on the 3lanninJ 	 =oninJ 
Committee.  If there is no vacancy, your application will be kept on file for one year for 
consideration should an opening occur. 

Please return application to: City of Clarkston
Office of the City Clerk 
1055 Rowland Street
Clarkston, GA 30021

Submit by emDiO tR� tashby@cityofclarkston.com

Thank you for your willingness to serve your local government and community. 

'ATE O) A33L,CAT,ON



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

CELL PHONE: 

NAME: 

HOME ADDRESS: 

HOME PHONE: 

E-mail ADDRESS:

LENGTH OF RESIDENCY IN CLARKSTON:  

IF EMPLOYED, PLEASE LIST WHERE YOU WORK AND POSITION YOU HOLD: 

PLEASE ATTACH A LETTER OF INTEREST INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 
FOLLOWING: 

• Why you wish to be considered for appointment to the Planning & Zoning Committee
• Your relevant experience and knowledge

The information provided will be used by the Mayor to make a nomination and for the City 
Council to consider for appointment, when a vacancy exists on the Planning & Zoning 
Committee.  If there is no vacancy, your application will be kept on file for one year for 
consideration should an opening occur. 

Please return application to: City of Clarkston
Office of the City Clerk 
1055 Rowland Street
Clarkston, GA 30021

Submit by email to: tashby@cityofclarkston.com

Thank you for your willingness to serve your local government and community. 

DATE OF APPLICATION



CITY OF CLARKSTON 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

CELL PHONE: 

NAME: 

HOME ADDRESS: 

HOME PHONE: 

E-mail ADDRESS:

LENGTH OF RESIDENCY IN CLARKSTON:  

IF EMPLOYED, PLEASE LIST WHERE YOU WORK AND POSITION YOU HOLD: 

PLEASE ATTACH A LETTER OF INTEREST INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 
FOLLOWING: 

• Why you wish to be considered for appointment to the Planning & Zoning Committee
• Your relevant experience and knowledge

The information provided will be used by the Mayor to make a nomination and for the City 
Council to consider for appointment, when a vacancy exists on the Planning & Zoning 
Committee.  If there is no vacancy, your application will be kept on file for one year for 
consideration should an opening occur. 

Please return application to: City of Clarkston
Office of the City Clerk 
1055 Rowland Street
Clarkston, GA 30021

Submit by email to: tashby@cityofclarkston.com

Thank you for your willingness to serve your local government and community. 

DATE OF APPLICATION January 21, 2021

Lisa Williams

3778 Poplar Drive, Clarkston, GA 30021

404-488-7400

lisaannebickert@gmail.com

15 Years

EVP Finance/Operations @ Trevelino/Keller





CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

 

PURPOSE:    
To discuss approving a Resolution Concerning Appointments to the 2021 Standing Advisory Committees 

NEED/ IMPACT:  
The Clarkston City Council adopted Standing Advisory Committees in February 2016 to provide a mechanism to 
study and formulate policy recommendations that will benefit the community and to engage members of the public 
in the process of formulating and studying policy recommendations. 

The Clarkston City Council needs to make member appointment in 2021 for the Standing Advisory Committees. The 
proposed membership appointments (2021) are reflected below: 

Public Safety and Legal Committee 
Chair: Awet Eyasu
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson
Jamie Carroll
Mayor Burks

Housing and Infrastructure Committee 
Co-Chair: Jamie Carroll
Vice Chair: Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson 
Mayor Burks

Community Development Committee 
Chair: Debra Johnson 
Vice Chair: Awet Eyasu 

Transportation and Environment Committee 
Chair: Awet Eyasu 
Vice Chair: Laura Hopkins 

Marketing and Civic Innovation Committee 
Chair: Ahmed Hassan 
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson

Equity, Inclusion, and Opportunity 
Chair: Laura Hopkins 
Vice Chair: Debra Johnson
Mayor Burks

RECOMMENDATIONS:  No Staff recommendation. 

ITEM NO: G1 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting MEETING DATE:February 2 2021

SUBJECT:  Discussion Concerning Appointments to Standing Advisory Committees 

DEPARTMENT: City Council 

ATTACHMENT:  YES   NO 
Pages: 1 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Beverly H. Burks & 
Debra Johnson 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



RESOLUTION 

CONCERNING APPOINTMENTS TO STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

 

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council is desirous of creating a mechanism to study 

and formulate policy recommendations that will benefit the community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council is desirous of engaging members of the public 

in the process of formulating and studying policy recommendations that will benefit the 

community; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council has approved a Resolution creating Standing 

Advisory Committees. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Clarkston City Council, that the 

following City Council members are hereby appointed as follows:   

 

Public Safety and Legal Committee 

Chair: Awet Eyasu,  

Vice Chair: Debra Johnson 

Jamie Carroll 

Mayor Burks 

 

Housing and Infrastructure Committee 

Chair: Jamie Carroll, Laura Hopkins 

Debra Johnson 

Mayor Burks 

 

Community Development Committee 

Chair: Debra Johnson 

Vice-Chair: Awet Eyasu 

 

Transportation and Environment Committee 

Co-Chair: Awet Eyasu and Laura Hopkins 

 

Marketing and Civic Innovation Committee 

Chair: Ahmed Hassan 

Debra Johnson 

 

Equity, Inclusion, and Opportunity 

Co-Chair: Laura Hopkins and Debra Johnson 

Mayor Burks 

 

SO RESOLVED, this _____ day of ________________, 2021. 
 

   

  CITY COUNCIL 

  CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA  



 

 

 

 

  ___________________________________________   __________________________________ 

   BEVERLY H. BURKS, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2nd, 2021 

SUBJECT: Conditional use permit request for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road 
Suites B & C. 

 

 
 

PURPOSE: A request from Mohommad Bilal Khattak for a conditional use permit for the 
property located at 1051 Montreal Road, Suites B & C, zoned I, Light Industrial Clarkston, GA 
30021, for used a coin laundromat. 

NEED/ IMPACT:  
A conditional use permit application request shall be heard at public hearings to determine 
whether or not the applicants proposed conditional use would generally be in the public 
interest. In considering whether a proposed conditional use is in the public interest, the 
mayor and city council shall consider the following, among other relevant factors: (1) 
Whether the conditional use would be injurious to the use and enjoyment of the 
environment or of other property in the immediate vicinity or diminish and impair property 
values within the surrounding neighborhood; (2) Whether the proposed conditional use 
would increase local or state expenditures in relation to cost of servicing or maintaining 
neighboring properties; (3) Whether the establishment of the conditional use would 
impede the normal and orderly development of surrounding property for uses predominant 
in the area; and  (4) Whether the location and character of the proposed conditional use 
would be consistent with a desirable pattern of development for the locality in general.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff Analysis attached. 
Staff recommended CONDITIONALLY APPROVING the conditional use permit request to 
allow the coin laundromat with seven (7) conditions.  

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 01/19/2021 

ITEM NO: G2 

ACTION TYPE: 
Public Hearing 

HEARING TYPE: 
  Public Hearing 2/2 

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning/Economic and 
Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning/Economic and Development Director 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



 
 

  
 

The Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval with staff’s seven (7) 
recommendations amending the hours under condition number 7.   
1. The business shall only be limited to operating as a coin laundromat.  
2. There shall be no long term or overnight parking. 
3. The owner/tenant shall adhere to Sections 12-20 Disorderly Conduct and 12-28 Noise. 
4. The business shall not emit noise, vibrations, smoke, gas, fumes, or odors that would be 

a nuisance to the adjacent properties.  
5. The business shall comply with the Department of Natural Resources-Environmental 

Protection Division (EPD) policies/ procedures and laws relative to air/land quality, 
environmental pollutants disposal. 

6. The owner/tenant shall adhere to all City requirements for plan review, permitting, and 
business licensing.  

7. Hours of operation shall be 6am -11pm, Monday thru Sunday.   
 
 
 



    
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

MEETING 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

   AGENDA 

  January 19, 20201 7:00 PM     

TELECONFERENCE 

       Call in Number: 

          404. 902. 5066 

          Call in Code: 

                326629 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

 

C. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  

Any member of the public may address the Planning and Zoning Board, during the time allotted for public 

hearing. Each attendee will be allowed 3 minutes. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please 

provide those questions to staff in writing on the Public Comment Card prior to the meeting. This will facilitate 

follow-up by the Board or Staff. The Planning and Zoning Board desires to allow an opportunity for public 

comment; however, the business of the Board must proceed in an orderly and timely manner. 

 

D. NEW BUSINESS 

1. PUBLIC HEARING: Mohammad Bilal Khattak has submitted a conditional use 

permit request for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road, Suites B & C, 

Clarkston, Georgia 30021, zoned I- Light Industrial Development for a coin 

laundromat. 

 

E. OTHER BUSINESS 

1. Chairman and Vice Chairman selections. 

 

F.  ADJOURNMENT 



    

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
   

 
 

   

  

  January 19th, 2021 7:00 PM     
TELECONFERENCE 
       Call in Number: 
          (404) 902-5066 
          Call in Code: 
                326629 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 7:01 PM. 

  
B. ROLL CALL: Chairman Birendra Dhakal, Vice Chairman Charles McFarland, Felicia 

Weinert, Susan Hood, P/E &D Director Shawanna Qawiy 
 

C. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 2020 MEETING MINUTES:  Chairman Birendra Dhakal 
called for a motion to approve the November 2020 meeting minutes.  Felecia Weinert made a 
motion to approve, Charles McFarland seconded, and the motion passed 3/0/1. Susan Hood 
abstained 

  
D. NEW BUSINESS  

1. PUBLIC HEARING: Mohammad Bilal Khattak has submitted a conditional use 
permit request for the property located at 1051 Montreal Road, Suites B & C, Clarkston, 
Georgia 30021, zoned I- Light Industrial Development for a coin laundromat. 

 
PED Director Qawiy gave an overview of the conditional use permit four (4) criteria 
points and the conditional use permit request proposed for 1051 Montreal Road for a 
coin laundromat.  Chairman Dhakal opened the public hearing to those who wished to 
speak in opposition of the conditional use permit request. There were no speakers.  
Chairman Dhakal opened the public hearing to those who wished to speak in favor of 
the conditional use permit request. Amy Medford spoke in favor. Mrs. Medford listed 
her concerns related to pedestrian traffic on Montreal Road to the facility and for the 
City to consider a crosswalk in front of the property. She recommended that the 
applicant use eco-friendly detergents and limit the hours of operation for the coin 
laundromat to be the same as the adjacent gas station.   
With no further public comments, Chairman Dhakal closed the public hearing.  
 
Board members discussed the item collectively. Ms. Weinert asked about the 
environmental requirements for a coin laundromat and the City’s distancing 
requirements due to COVID. PED Qawiy stated that she had spoken with a 
representative at the Department of Natural Resource- EPD in the permitting division 
and the facility would only be regulated to perform regular maintenance on the dryers.  



PED Director also stated that the City has a policy for social distancing, public 
gatherings and wearing masks and the facility would be required to adhere to those 
policies. Also, that he location currently has 28 parking spaces for the development. 
The proposed conditional use permit request is required to have 5 spaces based on the 
use.  
Vice Chairman McFarland asked the applicant about the hours of operation. Mr. 
Khattak stated that the hours of operation would be the same as the adjacent gas 
station, from 6am to 11pm. He also stated that it is good business to clean the dryer 
filters at least every other day.   
  
Charles McFarland made a motion to conditionally approve the coin laundromat, with 
staff’s seven (7) conditions, amending condition number seven (7) to include the 
hours of operation from 6am to 11pm, Felecia Weinert seconded, and the motion 
passed 4/0. 

 
 

 
E. OTHER BUSINESS 

1. Chairman and Vice Chairman selections. 
PED Qawiy gave the background according to the Code of Ordinances, Section 15-3 
Same organization, rules of procedure, meeting records, the planning and zoning board 
shall elect its chairman and vice chairman from among its members.  The term of the 
chairman shall be one (1) year with eligibility for re-election.  
Board members Birendra Dhakal, Susan Hood, Felecia Weinert and Charles McFarland 
discussed the item collectively. Susan Hood made the motion to recommend Charles 
McFarland as the Chairman and Felecia Weinert as the Vice Chairperson, Birendra 
Khakal seconded and the motion passed 4/0. 

 
 
 

F.  ADJOURNMENT:  Birendra Dhakal called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Felecia 
Weinert made the motion to adjourn, Charles McFarland seconded the motion, and the 
motion passed 4/0.  Meeting adjourned at 7:45 PM. 

 





































EXHIBIT "D" 

LEASE GUARANTEE LETTER 

The undersigned, Mohammad Bilal Khattak as 
guarantor(s), in consideration of owner entering into 
the lease dated December 12, 2020 with Bl LAUNDRY LLC 
in the CLARKSTON Plaza Shopping Center located at 1051 
MONTREAL ROAD, Suite B & C, CLARKSTON, GA 30021 hereby 
guarantees all monthly payments to owner and 
performance of all other obligations as the tenant 
under this lease and all contemporaneous and future 
attachments and amendments thereto. Any notice that 
owner is required to give the tenant under this lease, 
including but not limited to notice of default, is 
deemed given to the undersigned upon owner giving 
tenant notice in accordance with Section 16 of this 
lease and the undersigned waives any other notice from 
owner. If there is more than one guarantor, this 
liability shall be joint and several. 

Guarantor: 

 

Da'te of Birth 

Georgia Driver Licenses 

I� L4/.,c> 
Date ' 

Page 13 of 15 

TENANT: JJl..!i,,, 

,., .. � 





















CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE:  February 2nd, 2021 

  

SUBJECT: The Mayor and City Council shall review a request for a shared or reduced parking 
agreement from Mr. Henock Mekonnen for a proposed retail development at 3884 E. Ponce de Leon 
Avenue with the current parking (property) for a gas station located at 3874 E. Ponce de Leon 
Avenue.  

PURPOSE:  According to Section 1108: Shared and reduced parking standards, of the City of 
Clarkston’s Code of Ordinances, the Mayor and City Council shall review and discuss requests to 
reduce the parking requirements through a shared or reduced parking arrangement only through 
the permission of the Mayor and City Council. 

Mr. Henock Mekonnen the owner of the properties located at 3874 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue- an 
existing gas station and 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue (a 0.5-acre vacant lot) is requesting to 
reduce the required number of parking spaces to construct a 5,000 sq. ft retail development on the 
currently vacant lot located at 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue. The property owner is seeking to 
build a delicatessen (825 sq. ft) inside the retail mart (4,175 sq.ft.) on the vacant lot which will 
require 24 parking spaces.  

According to the submitted to scale site plan, the required number of spaces for the new and 
existing buildings are 36 parking spaces.  The applicant is requesting approval of a reduction and 
shared parking agreement for 33 parking spaces that will be for the contiguous properties of 3874 
and 3884 East Ponce de Leon Avenue, with a cross easement that will establish access to the 
parking spaces in perpetuity.  

ITEM NO: G3 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 

HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning/Economic & 
Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning/Economic and Development 
Director 

 



 
 

  
 

 
 
 
After the reduction/shared parking calculations, the columns with 32 spaces are the recommended 
minimum shared parking requirement for the development or collectively for the contiguous 
properties.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends approving the reduced/shared parking agreement of 33 spaces with the 
conditions that the applicant adheres to Section 1108: Shared or reduced parking standards, the 
NC-1 zoning district requirements for permitted uses, and all development, landscaping and 
permitting requirements for construction of the new building. 

  

Parking Reduction/Share Calculation Table  

 
USE 

Required 
Parking 
Spaces 

Weekday Weekday Weekend Weekend 

6AM- 5PM 5PM- 1AM 6AM-5PM 5PM-1AM 

Retail @ 
4,175  
sq.ft. 

17 17 at 95%  
16 

 

17 at 85% 
14 

17 at 100% 
17 

17 at 70% 
12 

Deli @ 825 
sq. ft. 

10 10 at 75% 
7 

10 at 100% 
10 

10 at 60% 
6 

10 at 100% 
10 

Existing Gas 
Station-spaces 

9 9 at 95% 
8 

9 at 85% 
8 

9 at 100% 
9 

9 at 70% 
6 

      
Total Spaces 36 31 32 32 28 





















Tel. (770) 316-9345
Roswell,  Ga.  30076

205 MALVERN PLACE

jim@architecturaladvocates.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE/REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN CHECK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARKSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
YESHI MARKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3874 EAST PONCE DE LEON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARKSTON GA 30021

AutoCAD SHX Text
JH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/24/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECONDARY ROOF       

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW DRAIN       

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uRIGHT SIDE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uBACK ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF THE HIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uLEFT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uFRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF THE HIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK VENEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF THE HIP



0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005
mi

E. Po nce de Leo n Avenue

Highland Village Apartments

Date Printed: 1/17/2021 ±
3874 and 3884 E. Ponce de Leon Avenue 4 DeKalb  Count y GIS  Disclaimer

The map s and data, c o ntained on DeKalb Co unty’s Geo grap hic Info rmatio n System (GIS) are subjec t to  c o nstant c hange. While DeKalb Co unty strives to  p ro vide ac c urate and up -
to -date info rmatio n, the info rmatio n is p ro vided “as is” w itho ut w arranty, rep resentatio n o r  guarantee of any kind as to  the c o ntent, seq uenc e, ac c ur ac y, timeliness o r c o mp leteness
o f any of the database info rmation p r o vided herein.  DeKalb Co unty exp lic itly disc laims all rep resentations and w arranties, inc luding, w itho ut limitatio n, the imp lied w arranties o f
merc hantability and fitness fo r a partic ular p urp o se.  In no  event shall DeKalb Co unty be liable fo r any special, indirec t, o r c o nseq uential damages w hatso ever resulting fr o m lo ss o f
use, data, o r p ro fits, w hether in an ac tio n of c o ntrac t, negligence, o r o ther ac tions, arising o ut o f o r in c o nnec tio n with the use of the map s and/o r data herein p ro vided.  The map s
and data are fo r  illustratio n p ur p o ses o nly and sho uld no t be relied up o n fo r any reaso n. The map s and data are no t suitable fo r site-sp ec ific decisio n-mak ing no r sho uld it be
c o nstr ued o r  used as a legal desc r ip tio n. The areas depic ted by map s and data are ap p ro ximate, and are no t nec essarily ac c urate to  surveying o r engineering standards.



Sec. 706. - NC-1, low-density neighborhood commercial district.  

(a)  Purpose and intent: The NC-1 zoning district is intended to provide suitable areas for limited retail 
and personal services serving residents in the immediate vicinity. Uses located within this district 
supply those goods and services which require frequent purchasing with a minimum of customer 
travel. The scope at which properties are developed within the NC-1 district should reflect their 
relatively small market areas. This zoning district may serve as a step down from more intense 
commercial uses to residential uses.  

(b)  Permitted uses:  

(1)  Banks and financial institutions.  

(2)  Child care/daycare centers, pre-schools and similar establishments.  

(3)  Eating and drinking establishments, excluding drive-thru/drive-in fast food establishments.  

(4)  Funeral homes (no on-site crematory services).  

(5)  Retail trade: Uses shall have no more than five thousand (5,000) square feet of gross floor 
area. Appropriate uses include:  

(a)  Art stores/galleries.  

b.  Antique shops.  

c.  Book and video stores (non-adult oriented).  

d.  Camera shops.  

e.  Dry cleaners.  

f.  Florists.  

g.  Drug stores.  

h.  Gift shops.  

i.  Toy stores.  

j.  Pet grooming and supply shops.  

k.  Jewelry stores.  

l.  Sporting goods and hobbies.  

m.  Shoe stores.  

n.  Apparel stores.  

o.  Other similar and customary uses.  

(6)  Non-automotive repair services such as cameras, jewelry, shoes and the like.  

(7)  Professional offices, including medical doctors, dentists, attorneys, chiropractic, veterinary 
(without boarding), accountants/tax professionals and other similar occupations.  

(8)  Personal service establishments including barber shops, hair salons, nail salons and other 
similar uses.  

(9)  Multi-family residential dwellings, including condominiums and apartment buildings consisting 
of at least four (4) individual units.  

(10)  Accessory uses and structures incidental to any legal permitted use, including home 
occupations (when applicable).  

(c)  Conditional uses:  

(1)  Places of assembly, including religious institutions, provided:  



a.  Lighting shall be established in such a way that no direct light shall cast over any property 
line nor adversely affect neighboring properties.  

b.  Any building or structure established in connection with such use must be set back no less 
than fifty (50) feet from any property line.  

(d)  Accessory uses:  

(1)  All such structures shall be located upon the same lot and to the side or rear of the principal 
use at least ten (10) feet from side or rear lot lines or within the side-or-rear-yard setback, 
whichever is greater. In cases of corner lots, the accessory structure may not be closer to any 
right-of-way than the principal building.  

(2)  When an accessory structure is attached to the principal building in any manner, it shall be 
deemed part of the principal structure and subject to all bulk and area requirements of same.  

(3)  Any accessory building in excess of one thousand (1,000) square feet of gross space must be 
at least ten (10) feet from any property line and shall be architecturally compatible with the 
principal structure.  

(4)  No accessory structure shall be constructed upon a lot before the principal building.  

(5)  No accessory structure may exceed the more restrictive of either fifteen (15) feet or the height 
of the principal building.  

(6)  The area of the accessory building's footprint may not exceed fifty (50) percent that of the 
principal structure.  

(7)  Recycling collection/drop off centers.  

a.  No outside storage allowed.  

b.  Container bins and/or donation boxes are limited to rear or side yards and must be located 
in such a manner as to be screened from view from the public right-of-way. When a 
business is located on a corner lot, container bins and/or donation boxes must be placed to 
the rear or interior side of the property such that the location is not visible from the right-of-
way of any street.  

c.  A maximum of one (1) container bin/donation box per property is allowed.  

d.  Container bins and/or donation boxes shall not be located within fifty (50) feet of a structure 
utilized for detached single-family residential purposes.  

e.  Location of container bins and/or donation boxes must be approved by the city manager or 
his designee.  

(e)  Use limitations:  

(1)  All outdoor storage must be located in the rear yard and must be screened by a solid fence or 
wall no less than six (6) feet in height.  

(2)  No uses which emit odors, fumes or continuous loud noise are permitted (including 
manufacturing processes).  

(3)  No kennels are permitted within veterinary clinics.  

(4)  Building design and materials may be of the owner's choosing; however, structures which 
utilize metal siding shall be constructed with brick, stone, rock or wood covering any facade of 
the building facing a roadway.  

(5)  All individual non-residential uses shall not exceed a maximum built floor area of two thousand 
five hundred (2,500) square feet.  

(f)  Bulk and area regulations:  



Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (Residential, Max.)  0.5  

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (Non-Residential, Max.)  0.5  

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (Total, Max.)  1  

Min. Residential Unit Size (finished, heated floor are)  700 sq. ft.  

Building Coverage (Max, a % of lot area)  80%  

Min. Open Space  20%  

Max. Building Height  35'  

Min. Lot Size  6,000 sq. ft.  

Min. Lot Width  50'  

Minimum Front Yard Setback  10'  

Minimum Side Yard Setback**  None or 8'  

Minimum Rear Yard Setback***  10' or 20'**  

**Side yard setback must be greatest distance when abutting a single-family residential district  

***Rear yard setback must be of greatest distance when abutting a single-family residential district  

  

(g)  Buffer requirements:  

(1)  When a use within the NC-1 district directly abuts the NR-1, NR-2 or NR-3 district, a thirty-foot 
landscaped buffer shall be required.  

(h)  Temporary uses: Temporary uses if approved pursuant to section 313.  

(Ord. No. 375, § 8(Attach.), 10-1-13)  



Sec. 1108. - Shared or reduced parking standards.  

Reduced parking for NR-1, NR-2, and NR-3 districts shall be prohibited. For all other districts, the 
applicant may request a reduction to or waiver of parking standards based on the following criteria:  

(a)  Reduction of parking requirements through a shared parking arrangement may be permissible 
only through the permission of the mayor and city council provided the arrangement shall avoid 
conflicting parking demands and provide for safe pedestrian circulation and access.  

(b)  A to-scale map indicating location of proposed parking spaces shall be provided.  

(c)  A shared parking calculation projection shall be provided that demonstrates that each use will 
have adequate parking provisions at all times. The process for determining the minimum 
parking requirements for a mixed-use development or for contiguous properties containing 
multiple uses is:  

(1)  Determine the minimum number of parking spaces required for each use category from 
section 1107 of this article.  

(2)  Multiply each parking requirement by the corresponding percentage for each of the time 
periods shown on the table below.  

(3)  Total the number of parking spaces for each of the time periods (that is, add together all of 
the numbers in each column).  

(4)  The largest column total is the minimum shared parking requirement for the development 
or collectively for the contiguous properties.  

TABLE: SHARED PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS  

Use  

Weekdays  Weekends  

Daytime  
6 a.m.—5 p.m.  

Evening  
5 p.m.—1 a.m.  

Daytime  
6 a.m.—5 p.m.  

Evening  
5 p.m.—1 a.m.  

Residential  80%  100%  80%  100%  

Office  100%  10%  20%  5%  

Retail  95%  85%  100%  70%  

Hotel  60%  100%  60%  100%  

Restaurant  75%  100%  60%  100%  

Entertainment  50%  85%  70%  100%  

Church  50%  50%  100%  60%  

  



   

(d)  For contiguous properties sharing parking spaces under this provision, cross-easements shall 
be filed establishing access to the parking spaces in perpetuity.  

(e)  A reduction in the number of parking spaces that would otherwise be required for each of the 
various uses on a multiple-use property must be clearly shown on the development plan. If 
shared parking is proposed for a combination of contiguous properties, a plan must be 
submitted covering all of the properties that will be sharing the parking spaces.  

(f)  A written agreement among all owners of record shall be provided and held on file with the city 
clerk. All renewed or terminated leases shall be filed with the city clerk.  

(g)  One-half (½) of the off-street parking spaces required by a use whose peak attendance will be 
at night or on Sundays may be shared with a use that will be closed at night or on Sundays.  



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021  

SUBJECT:  Review/Discuss Approval of Request from CORE (Community Organized Relief Effort) for COVID-19 
Testing and/or Vaccine Funding. 

PURPOSE: 

Discuss the below request from CORE for funding to assist with COVID-19 Testing and Vaccinations.  

NEED/IMPACT: 

The City of Clarkston provided $80,000 in CARES Act Funds, to CORE for November and December 2020, 
COVID-19 testing.  The City also provided Ethne Health $20,000 for COVID-19 testing. 

The below represents CORE request transmitted to the City of January 19, 2021: 

From: Jonathan Golden [mailto:jonathan.golden@coreresponse.org]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 10:41 AM 
To: Beverly Burks; Robin Gomez; Oladele, Alawode; Bedane, Sentayehu; sandra.ford@dph.ga.gov 
Cc: Margaret Herro; Justin Howell 
Subject: Clarkston COVID-19 Operations Continuation 

Good morning Dr. Bedane, Dr. Oladele, Dr. Ford, Mr. Gomez and Mayor Burks, 

To date, the CORE, IRC, DBOH partnership has allowed us to provide PCR tests for 13,168 members of the 
Clarkston community over 61 testing days. Given the population of ~12,750 in Clarkston—a community 
with so many different cultures, beliefs, and languages—we believe this is a great feat that shows the 
power of partnership. 

We have been thankful to have donors, such as the City of Clarkston, who saw the value of this work and 
were able to provide funding. As stated before, the funding from the City of Clarkston funding expired on 
12/15, so CORE committed to providing funding for the operations for all of January, with a demobilization 
date on 2/1 in the absence of further funding. This was done in hopes that additional funding would be 
secured. 

ITEM NO: G4 

ACTION TYPE: 
Approval  HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT: ROBIN I. GOMEZ 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Unfortunately, as of today we have been unable to access additional funding so plan to proceed with 
demobilization in 13 days on 2/1. 
 
We feel a strong obligation to continue operations and serve the Clarkston community, both in testing and 
eventual vaccination. If you all are in agreement for the need for the program to continue, and know of 
any funding sources and would be willing to advocate for continuation, it would be much appreciated by 
CORE, IRC, and the people of Clarkston. We would also like to ask for direct funding from the City of 
Clarkston as well as the Board of Health. 
 
The cost for a fully integrated mobile testing unit will be $40,000 per month. This cost reduction is based 
on us being able to use insurance based testing at the unit, and operational coverage that will come with 
it. Using DBOH test kits, the cost will be $70,000 per month. 
 
We can also convert to a vaccine unit and partner with Ethne Health and Clarkston Community Health 
Center for volunteer clinicians, at a cost of $62,000 per month. Without volunteers, this would be $84,000 
per month, but we are confident about partnering with Ethne and CCHC. 
 
If you would like to further discuss this, please let me know and we can set up a meeting. 
 
Thank you, 
Jonathan 
 
--   
Jonathan Golden 
Georgia Area Manager 
CORE: Community Organized Relief Effort 
 

 
 
 

  

(678) 431-4206 

  

jonathan.golden@coreresponse.org 

  

https://www.coreresponse.org/covid19 

 

 

tel:(678)%20431-4206
mailto:jonathan.golden@coreresponse.org
https://www.coreresponse.org/covid19


CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Discussion- Encourage plants options on food menu and all City events  

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss encouraging plants options on food menu and for all City events. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G5 

ACTION TYPE: 
Proclamation HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Awet Eyasu,  Jamie 
Carroll 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Resolution in support of more plant options on food menu 
Sponsored by AWET EYASU 

WHEREAS , food is a fundamental necessity for survival of human beings. 
WHEREAS , plants constitute the bulk of food for sustenance of healthy communities all over 
the world.  
WHEREAS , Clarkston is home to diverse communities who come from over 50 nations and 
striving to continue their culinary heritage. 
WHEREAS , Clarkston is committed to building a welcoming and neighborly community. 
WHEREAS , the City of Clarkston has been actively supporting more urban agriculture and 
community gardens at local parks. 
WHEREAS , more vegetarian and plant options also can be good for business by attracting more 
consumers to businesses.  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Clarkston City Council strongly 
encourages residents and food vending  businesses to incorporate more plant options on their 
menu. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all City sponsored events must 
include more plant and vegetarian options.  

SO RESOLVED , this _____ day of ________________, 2021. 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

___________________________________ 
BEVERLY H. BURKS, Mayor  

__________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk 

 ____________________________ 
Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Proclamation for Black History Month 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss drafting a proclamation for Black History Month. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G6 

ACTION TYPE: 
Proclamation HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Beverly Burks, 
Debra Johnson 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



Proclamation 

WHEREAS, Black History Month celebrates the achievements of African Americans in the Arts, Civil 

Rights, Education, Entertainment, Government, History, Law, Literature, Medicine, Military, Music, 

Politics, Science, Sports, and other endeavors; and 

WHEREAS, In 1915, Dr. Carter Godwin Woodson, noted Black scholar and son of former slaves, 

founded the Association for the Study of Negro Life and History, which was later renamed the 

Association for the Study of African American Life and History (ASALH); and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Woodson initiated Black History Week, February 12, 1926; and for many years, the 

second week of February, chosen to coincide with the birthdays of Frederick Douglas and Abraham 

Lincoln, was celebrated by African Americans in the United States, and 

WHEREAS, in 1976, as part of the nation’s bicentennial, Black History Week was expanded and became 

established as Black History Month, and is now celebrated all over North America; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month seeks to emphasize Black history and its cultural contributions to 

American life, and is designed to recognize and pay tribute to the many contributions of African 

Americans to the history, society and culture of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month allows us an opportunity to recognize the heroes of African American 

history including James West, U.S. inventor of more than 250 patents and Professor at John Hopkins 

University; Marie M. Daly, the first African-American woman to receive a Ph.D. in chemistry in the U.S., 

who taught and conducted research regarding foods and diet and their effect on the heart and the 

circulatory system; and Katherine G. Johnson, one of NASA's human computers who performed the 

complex calculations that enabled humans to successfully achieve space flight; and 

WHEREAS, While the observance of Black History Month calls our Nation’s attention to the continued 

need to battle racism, social injustice, and to build a society that lives up to it democratic ideals, this 

year’s celebrations and recognition of Black History Month are especially significant as we reflect on the 

historically monumental Swearing-In Ceremony of Kamala Harris, our Nation’s first African American 

Vice President on January 20, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Beverly H. Burks, Mayor of the City of Clarkston, Georgia and on behalf of the 

Clarkston City Council, hereby proclaim the month of February 2021 as  

Black History Month 

in the City of Clarkston, and the City Council and Staff hereby acknowledge and celebrate the 

contributions to the City of Clarkston, State of Georgia and United States of America made by African 

Americans. 

SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021.  

 

ATTEST: CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

By _____________________  _____________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk  Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 

Approved as to Form: ____________________________  

Stephen G. Quinn, City Attorney 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Adopt a Resolution to refer to the housing committee to make policy recommendations for 
affordable housing solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund. 

PURPOSE:   

Council to discuss adopting a Resolution to refer to the housing committee to make policy 
recommendations for affordable housing solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has no recommendations. 

ITEM NO: G7 

ACTION TYPE: 
ResolutionHEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:  YES    NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   Beverly H. Burks, 
Debra Johnson 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



RESOLUTION TO REFER STUDY OF DESIGNATED ISSUES TO DESIGNATED 
STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: Beverly H. Burks and Debra Johnson 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council understands that it is desirable to conduct periodic reviews of the 
of various issues that affect the Clarkston Community; and  

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council is desirous of engaging members of the public in the 
process of formulating and studying policy recommendations that will benefit the community; 
and   

WHEREAS, the Clarkston City Council has established the Standing Advisory Committees to 
conduct these reviews and make recommendation to the full Council.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Clarkston City Council would like to 
consider referring the following item to the designated Standing Advisory Committee: 

• To make policy recommendations for affordable housing solutions and develop a 
process for the housing trust fund - Housing & Infrastructure 
 

 

SO RESOLVED, this __day of _________, 20____ 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
 
             
       Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

_________________ 
Tracy Ashby 
City Clerk 


	C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS
	D. OLD BUSINESS
	E. NEW BUSINESS
	Summary 2021 Appointments to  Standing Advisory Committees.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion Concerning Appointments to Standing Advisory Committees

	parking 3874 E. PONCE ELEVATIONS-Model.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	SUMMARY - DIRECT CM TO RESEARCH POSSIBLE CITY USE OF WELL WATER.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion- Research on the Possible City Use of Well Water
	Drinking Water
	Laws and Regulations
	Compliance
	Enforcement
	Policy and Guidance

	Ground Water
	Laws and Regulations


	SUMMARY - COVID-19 TESTING-VACCINE FUND REQUEST_.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Review/Discuss Request from CORE (Community Organized Relief Effort) for COVID-19 Testing and/or Vaccine Funding.
	Jonathan Golden

	SUMMARY  - DISCUSSION - Encourage plants options on food menu and all City events . doc.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion- Encourage plants options on food menu and all City events

	SUMMARY  - DISCUSSION - Proclamation for Black History . doc.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Proclamation for Black History Month

	Summary Resolution to refer to the housing committee affordable housing solutions.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion- Adopt a Resolution to refer to the housing committee to make policy recommendations for affordable housing solutions and develop a process for the housing trust fund.

	SUMMARY - ANNEXATION DISCUSSION.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discussion on Possible Future Annexation(s).

	SUMMARY - CARES ACT FUNDING UPDATE_.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Update on the City’s 2020 CARES Act Funds (Coronavirus Relief Fund)

	Draft Minutes  Council Meeting January 12  2021 .pdf
	G. CONSENT AGENDA The Mayor read the items listed under the Consent Agenda Awet Eyasu made a motion to approve the listed items in the Consent Agenda.   Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (5,0).
	G2) Confirm Attorney
	G3) Confirm Auditor
	G4) Confirm Judge
	G5) Confirm Solicitor
	G6) Confirm Ethics Hearing Officer
	G7) Appoint Historic Preservation Committee member
	H. NEW BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT:  Awet Eyasu made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried. (5,0).
	I. ADJOURNMENT:  Awet Eyasu made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Debra Johnson seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried. (5,0).


	Commission/Board/Committee: 
	Name: Keyah Brown
	Home Address: 4650 East Ponce de Leon Ave
	Home Phone Number: 
	Cell Phone Number: 916-600-5368
	Email Address: keyahnatae@gmail.com
	Length of Residency: 6 months
	Employment: Department of 
	Where and Position: Veterans Affairs, Health Aide


